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Dear Supreme Court
 
I am writing to formally express strong opposition to the proposed amendment to CrR 8.3(b)
and CrRLJ 8.3(b). I concur with the concerns raised by Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorneys
Arthur Sepulveda, David Martin, Don Raz, Jennifer Phillips, and Michael Mohandeson, in
their letters to the Court (see attached).
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on these proposed rule changes to the court rules.
 
 

Hana Lee (she/her) ⚖
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Economic Crimes Unit, Early Plea Unit (L-Z)
King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office
516 3rd Avenue | Seattle | WA | 98104
(: (206) 477-6885
*: hlee@kingcounty.gov   

**This e-mail and related attachments and any response may be subject to public disclosure under state law.

 

mailto:hlee@kingcounty.gov
https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification
mailto:SUPREME@COURTS.WA.GOV
mailto:Amber.Farino@courts.wa.gov
mailto:hlee@kingcounty.gov







You don't often get email from don.raz@kingcounty.gov. Learn why this is important


From: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK
To: Farino, Amber
Subject: FW: Proposed Changes to CrR 8,3(b) and CrRLJ 8.3 (b)
Date: Monday, April 21, 2025 11:38:21 AM


 
 


From: Raz, Don <Don.Raz@kingcounty.gov> 
Sent: Sunday, April 20, 2025 5:14 PM
To: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK <SUPREME@COURTS.WA.GOV>
Cc: Raz, Don <Don.Raz@kingcounty.gov>
Subject: Proposed Changes to CrR 8,3(b) and CrRLJ 8.3 (b)
 


External Email Warning! This email has originated from outside of the Washington State Courts
Network.  Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender, are expecting the
email, and know the content is safe.   If a link sends you to a website where you are asked to validate
using your Account and Password, DO NOT DO SO! Instead, report the incident.


 


Dear Supreme Court
 
              I am writing to voice my strong opposition to the adoption of the proposed change to
above-noted Criminal Court Rules for Washington State Superior Courts and Courts of Limited
Jurisdiction.  I am a senior deputy prosecutor with the King County Prosecuting Attorney’s
Office and have 37 years’ experience working with and observing the effects of Washington’s
criminal rules. 
 
              The proposed change to CrR 8.3(b) and CrRLJ 8.3(b) would allow any judge to dismiss
any case if they simply conclude there has been arbitrary or negligent conduct by the State,
even if the defendant is not prejudiced. This proposed change grants individual judges the
power to indiscriminately dismiss charges and convictions simply because they disagree with a
prosecutor’s changing decision or resentencing recommendation, the law upon which that
charging decision or sentencing recommendation is based, or how such law may be perceived
to that judge to inequitably affect different groups within the community.  Allowing dismissal
solely based on policy disagreements with the prosecution violates the separation of powers
between the judiciary and the prosecutor.  Further, the proposed amendment ignores this
Court’s long held precedent requiring a showing of prejudice to warrant dismissal. This Court
has required such a finding to justify dismissal even before a showing of prejudice was codified
in the current language of the rule. The requirement that the trial court “consider” four
unenumerated factors does nothing to prevent a judge from “considering” each factor and
finding them inadequate to overcome that particular judge’s views, opinions, beliefs, biases,
and prejudices. Without the requirement of prejudice to the defendant before dismissal the
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proposed change to the rules promotes significant disparate treatment of defendants
between different courts based on judges’ personal views and attitudes.  Finally, the proposed
change ignores the public interest in the prosecution of crimes and protection of the
community.  It requires no connection between any State misconduct and the defendant’s
ability to have a fair trial. This does not serve the public interest in punishment of the guilty,
public safety, and victim’s rights.   
 
I strongly urge this Court to reject this proposed change to CrR 8.3 (b) and CrRLJ 8.3 (b). 
 
              Thank you for time and your consideration.
 
              Sincerely
 
              Donald J. Raz, WSBA #17287
              Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
              King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office
 








I respectfully ask that the Court reject the following proposed rule changes to CrR/CrRLJ 8.3 for 
the reasons below: 


• The proposed amendment is contrary to this Court’s precedent requiring a showing 
of prejudice to warrant dismissal even when the text of the court rule does not 
mention it.  As initially enacted in 1973, CrR 8.3 read: “The court on its own motion in 
the furtherance of justice, after notice and hearing, may dismiss any criminal prosecution 
and shall set forth its reasons in a written order.” Despite the seemingly broad discretion 
allowed under the original rule, this Court held that dismissal under CrR 8.3(b) is only 
warranted if the defendant shows both arbitrary action or governmental misconduct and 
prejudice affecting the defendant’s right to a fair trial. State v. Michielli, 132 Wn.2d 229, 
239-40, 937 P.3d 587 (1997).  In 1995, CrR 8.3(b) was amended to explicitly include the 
prejudice requirement already imposed by case law. As this Court recounted in State v. 
Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 654-55, 71 P.3d 638 (2003), courts had long recognized that 
“dismissal of charges is an extraordinary remedy ... available only when there has been 
prejudice to the rights of the accused which materially affected the rights of the accused 
to a fair trial.”  State v. Baker, 78 Wash.2d 327, 332–33, 474 P.2d 254 (1970) (emphasis 
added in Rohrich). This conclusion was based on principles of both due process and 
separation of powers. State v. Cantrell, 111 Wn.2d 385, 758 P.2d 1 (1988). In light of both 
the prior case law and the 1995 amendment codifying that case law, this Court reaffirmed 
in Rohrich that a trial court may not dismiss charges under CrR 8.3(b) unless the 
defendant shows prejudice affecting their right to a fair trial. 149 Wn.2d at 653-54.  
Because the prejudice requirement is based on constitutional principles, amending the 
rule to omit it is contrary to law and will only result in confusion. To the extent that the 
proponents seek to overrule constitutional holdings of this Court via an amendment to the 
criminal rules, it is an improper attempt to avoid stare decisis through the rule-making 
process.  


• By allowing dismissal of a prosecution based on policy disagreements with the 
prosecutor, the proposed amendment violates the separation of powers between the 
judiciary and the prosecutor.  The separation of powers doctrine is “one of the cardinal 
and fundamental principles of the American constitutional system” and forms the basis of 
our state government. State v. Rice, 174 Wn.2d 884, 900, 279 P.3d 849, 857 (2012) 
(quoting Wash. State Motorcycle Dealers Ass'n v. State, 111 Wn.2d 667, 674, 763 P.2d 
442 (1988).  The authority of a trial court to dismiss a prosecution under CrR 8.3(b) must 
be tempered by this principle. Prosecutors are vested with wide discretion in determining 
how and when to file criminal charges. Bordenkircher v. Hayes, 434 U.S. 357, 365, 98 
S.Ct. 663, 669, 54 L.Ed.2d 604 (1978); State v. Lewis, 115 Wn.2d 294, 299, 797 P.2d 
1141 (1990).  A prosecutor’s broad charging discretion is part of the inherent authority 
granted to them as executive officers under the state constitution. Rice, 174 Wn.2d at 904. 
Because the proposed amendment would allow a court to dismiss charges based purely 
upon the court’s subjective determination of “arbitrariness” without any requirement of 
prejudice to the defendant’s constitutional rights, it violates the separation of powers 
doctrine.  


• The proponents justify the proposed amendment by referring to “aggravated 
sentencing laws,” suggesting that dismissal of a prosecution should be authorized if 







the court disagrees with the charging decision or the sentence provided for under 
the SRA.  This illustrates that the intent of the amendment is to create an interpretation of 
“arbitrary action or governmental misconduct” that is so broad as to allow a judge to 
dismiss a prosecution based purely on a disagreement with the decision of the prosecutor 
as to which charges to file and/or with the legislature’s setting of punishments in the 
Sentencing Reform Act.  Such broad and unfettered discretion would violate the 
separation of judicial, executive, and legislative powers. 


• Because the proposed amendment does not require the action or misconduct to 
prejudice the accused in any manner, it untethers the rule from due process. As a 
result, defendants would benefit—and victims and public safety would suffer—even 
when the State’s action has in no way interfered with a defendants’ right to a fair trial. 
This significant broadening of the rule, and trial court’s discretion, would lead to 
unequitable application of the law  


• The proposed amendment does not resolve any of the problems identified by 
numerous commenters when a similar amendment was proposed and rejected in 
2024. The inclusion of four vague and ambiguous factors for the court to consider—along 
with removing the clear standard of requiring a showing that the accused’s right to a fair 
trial was materially affected—provides courts with no meaningful guidance on how to 
evaluate a particular governmental action. Further, the inclusion of the catchall phrase, 
“any other information the court believes is relevant to the inquiry,” effectively gives 
courts the same amount of broad, unchecked discretion to dismiss a case for any reason 
that the amendment proposed in 2024 did. In short, the proposed amendment would allow 
a court to find that dismissal was not warranted for any of the reasons enumerated in the 
rule but still dismiss based purely upon a judge’s own personal beliefs.  


• The proposed amendment would allow a trial judge to dismiss any criminal 
prosecution.  A court could conclude that any decision made by a prosecutor was 
arbitrary, from charging decisions to sentencing recommendations.  On that basis, the 
amendment would authorize dismissal of any or all charges or convictions.  For example, 
the term “government misconduct” has been interpreted to include negligence as well as 
affirmative misconduct.  As a result, a court could conclude that a prosecutor’s charging 
standards or allocation of office resources was arbitrary or negligent.  The amendment 
would authorize dismissal of any case that a court concludes was affected by that policy. 


• The justifications for this proposed amendment are nearly identical to the ones 
submitted in support of the proposed amendment that was rejected in 2024. Both 
then and now, the materials lack any compelling explanation of why this change is 
necessary. No specific case examples have been given and no multi-jurisdictional 
analysis has been done to demonstrate any issues in Washington that require this change 
to the rule. Instead, the proponents simply cite to a dissenting opinion from 1975 and 
make reference to problems within the general criminal justice system; thereby implying 
that a court could somehow address those problems by individually dismissing lawfully 
filed criminal charges in this state.  This argument lacks merit and is an 
oversimplification of numerous multifaceted issues.  







• The proposed amendment is justified by citing to a cherry-picked selection of court 
rules from other states without analysis, context, or meaningful application. As with 
many components of law, the bare text of a court rule rarely exists in a vacuum. The 
proponents have provided insufficient analysis as to how these rules actually function 
within the jurisdictions from which they have been plucked, how certain terms have been 
defined in those other jurisdictions, or how incorporating certain language into a 
Washington rule would impact or clash with existing Washington caselaw.  


• The proposed amendment is justified by referencing a “New York State Criminal 
Procedure Law,” but fails to include more than half of the factors listed in the rule 
that New York courts must evaluate when considering dismissal. Some of the 
removed factors include the extent of the harm caused by the offense, the evidence of 
guilt, the history and character of the defendant, the seriousness of the misconduct on the 
part of the State, and the victim’s position regarding dismissal. While the proponents are 
quick to point out that the New York law deals with the “interests of justice” and not 
“arbitrary action or governmental misconduct,” that distinction actually weighs in favor 
of Washington’s existing approach of requiring that any arbitrary action or misconduct 
must have materially affected the defendant’s right to a fair trial before a dismissal is 
warranted. 


• The proponents justify the proposed amendment by making the assertion that 
courts should be able to dismiss cases because of the “overrepresentation of black 
Americans in every stage of our criminal and juvenile justice systems.”  This implies 
that courts can and should dismiss entire categories of cases if a judge concludes that the 
category contributes to that overrepresentation.  However, it is unclear how a judge could 
conclude that a particular case is a contributor to overrepresentation of Black persons in 
the criminal justice system. Absent prejudice to a specific defendant, the rule suggests 
that a judge could elect to dismiss all such cases against Black Americans but not other 
racial groups.  


• The four factors enumerated in the proposed amendment are overly vague and 
underinclusive of the factors that ought to be considered before a court dismisses 
criminal charges. While the inclusion of some factors a court must consider is different 
from the amendment proposed in 2024, the factors themselves are not helpful and 
ultimately yield the same result. For example, the first factor requires a court to consider 
the seriousness and circumstances of the offense. Does that mean that less arbitrary action 
would be required to dismiss a misdemeanor as opposed a felony? The third factor 
requires a court to consider the impact of dismissal upon the confidence of the public in 
the criminal justice system. How could an individual trial judge possibly evaluate this in 
an unbiased manner? The fourth factor requires a court to consider the degree and impact 
of the arbitrary action. Again, how could this possibly be measured or evaluated?  In 
short, without a clear standard by which to evaluate an arbitrary action or misconduct (i.e. 
whether it has materially affected the defendant’s right to a fair trial), these factors do not 
provide meaningful guidance as to how a court should make this decision.   


• The proposed amendment ignores the public interest in the prosecution of crimes 
and protection of the victim and the community.  Because the proposed amendment 
would do away with the need for connection between any misconduct of the State and the 







defendant’s ability to have a fair trial, it does not serve the public interest in punishment 
of the guilty and public safety.  While one of the four factors is, “the impact of a 
dismissal on the safety or welfare of the community (the defendant is part of the 
community),” no guidance is given on how this factor ought to be weighed, if at all, 
against the other enumerated factors or any other information a court might deem 
“relevant to the inquiry.” This factor also implicitly shifts focus away from the victim and 
disregards the victim’s right to justice and protection from the defendant.  


 







You don't often get email from asepulveda@kingcounty.gov. Learn why this is important


From: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK
To: Farino, Amber
Subject: FW: Objection to Proposed Rule Changes CrR/CrRLJ 8.3
Date: Monday, April 21, 2025 10:19:26 AM
Attachments: image001.png


Objection to Proposed Rule Changes to CrR CrRLJ 8.3 .docx


 
 


From: Sepulveda, Arthur <asepulveda@kingcounty.gov> 
Sent: Monday, April 21, 2025 10:08 AM
To: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK <SUPREME@COURTS.WA.GOV>
Subject: Objection to Proposed Rule Changes CrR/CrRLJ 8.3
 


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


 


Hello,
 
I have attached my comments in a word document as it exceeds 1500 words.
 
 
Best,
 


Arthur Sepulveda
Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney,
Vice Chair Special Assault Unit Seattle
King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office
516 3rd Avenue | Seattle | WA | 98104
Office: (206) 477-3582
Email: asepulveda@kingcounty.gov
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I respectfully ask that the Court reject the following proposed rule changes to CrR/CrRLJ 8.3 for the reasons below:


· [bookmark: _Hlk156407033]The proposed amendment is contrary to this Court’s precedent requiring a showing of prejudice to warrant dismissal even when the text of the court rule does not mention it.  As initially enacted in 1973, CrR 8.3 read: “The court on its own motion in the furtherance of justice, after notice and hearing, may dismiss any criminal prosecution and shall set forth its reasons in a written order.” Despite the seemingly broad discretion allowed under the original rule, this Court held that dismissal under CrR 8.3(b) is only warranted if the defendant shows both arbitrary action or governmental misconduct and prejudice affecting the defendant’s right to a fair trial. State v. Michielli, 132 Wn.2d 229, 239-40, 937 P.3d 587 (1997).  In 1995, CrR 8.3(b) was amended to explicitly include the prejudice requirement already imposed by case law. As this Court recounted in State v. Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 654-55, 71 P.3d 638 (2003), courts had long recognized that “dismissal of charges is an extraordinary remedy ... available only when there has been prejudice to the rights of the accused which materially affected the rights of the accused to a fair trial.”  State v. Baker, 78 Wash.2d 327, 332–33, 474 P.2d 254 (1970) (emphasis added in Rohrich). This conclusion was based on principles of both due process and separation of powers. State v. Cantrell, 111 Wn.2d 385, 758 P.2d 1 (1988). In light of both the prior case law and the 1995 amendment codifying that case law, this Court reaffirmed in Rohrich that a trial court may not dismiss charges under CrR 8.3(b) unless the defendant shows prejudice affecting their right to a fair trial. 149 Wn.2d at 653-54.  Because the prejudice requirement is based on constitutional principles, amending the rule to omit it is contrary to law and will only result in confusion. To the extent that the proponents seek to overrule constitutional holdings of this Court via an amendment to the criminal rules, it is an improper attempt to avoid stare decisis through the rule-making process. 


· By allowing dismissal of a prosecution based on policy disagreements with the prosecutor, the proposed amendment violates the separation of powers between the judiciary and the prosecutor.  The separation of powers doctrine is “one of the cardinal and fundamental principles of the American constitutional system” and forms the basis of our state government. State v. Rice, 174 Wn.2d 884, 900, 279 P.3d 849, 857 (2012) (quoting Wash. State Motorcycle Dealers Ass'n v. State, 111 Wn.2d 667, 674, 763 P.2d 442 (1988).  The authority of a trial court to dismiss a prosecution under CrR 8.3(b) must be tempered by this principle. Prosecutors are vested with wide discretion in determining how and when to file criminal charges. Bordenkircher v. Hayes, 434 U.S. 357, 365, 98 S.Ct. 663, 669, 54 L.Ed.2d 604 (1978); State v. Lewis, 115 Wn.2d 294, 299, 797 P.2d 1141 (1990).  A prosecutor’s broad charging discretion is part of the inherent authority granted to them as executive officers under the state constitution. Rice, 174 Wn.2d at 904. Because the proposed amendment would allow a court to dismiss charges based purely upon the court’s subjective determination of “arbitrariness” without any requirement of prejudice to the defendant’s constitutional rights, it violates the separation of powers doctrine. 


· The proponents justify the proposed amendment by referring to “aggravated sentencing laws,” suggesting that dismissal of a prosecution should be authorized if the court disagrees with the charging decision or the sentence provided for under the SRA.  This illustrates that the intent of the amendment is to create an interpretation of “arbitrary action or governmental misconduct” that is so broad as to allow a judge to dismiss a prosecution based purely on a disagreement with the decision of the prosecutor as to which charges to file and/or with the legislature’s setting of punishments in the Sentencing Reform Act.  Such broad and unfettered discretion would violate the separation of judicial, executive, and legislative powers.


· Because the proposed amendment does not require the action or misconduct to prejudice the accused in any manner, it untethers the rule from due process. As a result, defendants would benefit—and victims and public safety would suffer—even when the State’s action has in no way interfered with a defendants’ right to a fair trial. This significant broadening of the rule, and trial court’s discretion, would lead to unequitable application of the law 


· The proposed amendment does not resolve any of the problems identified by numerous commenters when a similar amendment was proposed and rejected in 2024. The inclusion of four vague and ambiguous factors for the court to consider—along with removing the clear standard of requiring a showing that the accused’s right to a fair trial was materially affected—provides courts with no meaningful guidance on how to evaluate a particular governmental action. Further, the inclusion of the catchall phrase, “any other information the court believes is relevant to the inquiry,” effectively gives courts the same amount of broad, unchecked discretion to dismiss a case for any reason that the amendment proposed in 2024 did. In short, the proposed amendment would allow a court to find that dismissal was not warranted for any of the reasons enumerated in the rule but still dismiss based purely upon a judge’s own personal beliefs. 


· The proposed amendment would allow a trial judge to dismiss any criminal prosecution.  A court could conclude that any decision made by a prosecutor was arbitrary, from charging decisions to sentencing recommendations.  On that basis, the amendment would authorize dismissal of any or all charges or convictions.  For example, the term “government misconduct” has been interpreted to include negligence as well as affirmative misconduct.  As a result, a court could conclude that a prosecutor’s charging standards or allocation of office resources was arbitrary or negligent.  The amendment would authorize dismissal of any case that a court concludes was affected by that policy.


· The justifications for this proposed amendment are nearly identical to the ones submitted in support of the proposed amendment that was rejected in 2024. Both then and now, the materials lack any compelling explanation of why this change is necessary. No specific case examples have been given and no multi-jurisdictional analysis has been done to demonstrate any issues in Washington that require this change to the rule. Instead, the proponents simply cite to a dissenting opinion from 1975 and make reference to problems within the general criminal justice system; thereby implying that a court could somehow address those problems by individually dismissing lawfully filed criminal charges in this state.  This argument lacks merit and is an oversimplification of numerous multifaceted issues. 


· The proposed amendment is justified by citing to a cherry-picked selection of court rules from other states without analysis, context, or meaningful application. As with many components of law, the bare text of a court rule rarely exists in a vacuum. The proponents have provided insufficient analysis as to how these rules actually function within the jurisdictions from which they have been plucked, how certain terms have been defined in those other jurisdictions, or how incorporating certain language into a Washington rule would impact or clash with existing Washington caselaw. 


· The proposed amendment is justified by referencing a “New York State Criminal Procedure Law,” but fails to include more than half of the factors listed in the rule that New York courts must evaluate when considering dismissal. Some of the removed factors include the extent of the harm caused by the offense, the evidence of guilt, the history and character of the defendant, the seriousness of the misconduct on the part of the State, and the victim’s position regarding dismissal. While the proponents are quick to point out that the New York law deals with the “interests of justice” and not “arbitrary action or governmental misconduct,” that distinction actually weighs in favor of Washington’s existing approach of requiring that any arbitrary action or misconduct must have materially affected the defendant’s right to a fair trial before a dismissal is warranted.


· The proponents justify the proposed amendment by making the assertion that courts should be able to dismiss cases because of the “overrepresentation of black Americans in every stage of our criminal and juvenile justice systems.”  This implies that courts can and should dismiss entire categories of cases if a judge concludes that the category contributes to that overrepresentation.  However, it is unclear how a judge could conclude that a particular case is a contributor to overrepresentation of Black persons in the criminal justice system. Absent prejudice to a specific defendant, the rule suggests that a judge could elect to dismiss all such cases against Black Americans but not other racial groups. 


· The four factors enumerated in the proposed amendment are overly vague and underinclusive of the factors that ought to be considered before a court dismisses criminal charges. While the inclusion of some factors a court must consider is different from the amendment proposed in 2024, the factors themselves are not helpful and ultimately yield the same result. For example, the first factor requires a court to consider the seriousness and circumstances of the offense. Does that mean that less arbitrary action would be required to dismiss a misdemeanor as opposed a felony? The third factor requires a court to consider the impact of dismissal upon the confidence of the public in the criminal justice system. How could an individual trial judge possibly evaluate this in an unbiased manner? The fourth factor requires a court to consider the degree and impact of the arbitrary action. Again, how could this possibly be measured or evaluated?  In short, without a clear standard by which to evaluate an arbitrary action or misconduct (i.e. whether it has materially affected the defendant’s right to a fair trial), these factors do not provide meaningful guidance as to how a court should make this decision.  


· The proposed amendment ignores the public interest in the prosecution of crimes and protection of the victim and the community.  Because the proposed amendment would do away with the need for connection between any misconduct of the State and the defendant’s ability to have a fair trial, it does not serve the public interest in punishment of the guilty and public safety.  While one of the four factors is, “the impact of a dismissal on the safety or welfare of the community (the defendant is part of the community),” no guidance is given on how this factor ought to be weighed, if at all, against the other enumerated factors or any other information a court might deem “relevant to the inquiry.” This factor also implicitly shifts focus away from the victim and disregards the victim’s right to justice and protection from the defendant. 
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LEESA MANION (she/her) 
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 


 
 
 
Subject: Comment on proposed amendment to Court Rule CrR and CrRLJ 8.3(b). 
 
Dear Clerk of the Supreme Court, 
 
I am writing to formally express strong opposition to the proposed amendment to CrR and 
CrRLJ 8.3(b), which would remove the longstanding requirement that dismissals for 
governmental misconduct occur only “when there has been prejudice to the rights of the 
accused which materially affect the accused’s right to a fair trial.” As Chair of the Domestic 
Violence Unit in the King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office, I supervise the prosecution of 
over 1,000 felony domestic violence (DV) cases annually. Based on decades of experience, I 
believe this proposed change would have profound and negative consequences for victim 
safety, community trust, and judicial integrity. 
 
Under the current rule, courts are charged with ensuring that dismissals are tethered to 
demonstrated prejudice to the accused’s constitutional trial rights. This standard maintains 
procedural fairness while providing a meaningful check on governmental overreach. The 
proposed amendment would remove this constitutional guardrail and authorize courts to 
dismiss criminal cases based on broader, less concrete, and more subjective considerations—
including perceived systemic bias, structural inequities, or generalized claims of unfairness 
untethered from a specific legal violation. 
 
This change risks disproportionately affecting domestic violence cases, where the factual 
record is often complicated by recantation, intimidation, or strategic noncooperation. As the 
U.S. Supreme Court noted in Davis v. Washington, 547 U.S. 813, 826–27 (2006), “This 
particular type of crime is notoriously susceptible to intimidation or coercion of the victim to 
ensure she does not testify at trial.” These pressures often result in prosecutorial or procedural 
complexity that could be mischaracterized as misconduct—particularly in high-volume, 
emotionally charged DV dockets where marginalized victims already face structural barriers to 
justice. 
 
As documented in Recantation and Domestic Violence: The Untold Story (Bonomi & Martin, 
2024), abusers often use coercive control and emotional manipulation—rather than physical 
threats—to induce victims to recant, withdraw, or disengage. In such cases, what might appear 
procedurally irregular (e.g., delays in disclosure, non-cooperation, or hearsay reliance) is in 
fact the direct result of the abuse itself. If trial courts are empowered to dismiss these cases 
without a showing of actual prejudice to the accused’s trial rights, the rule risks 
institutionalizing the very coercion it is meant to guard against. 
 
Moreover, this change would run counter to the court’s obligation to balance the rights of the 
accused with the rights of victims and the public interest in accountability. Domestic violence 
victims—especially those from historically marginalized groups—already face barriers to 







accessing justice. In King County, approximately 63% of felony DV victims are people of color. 
The removal of the prejudice requirement could increase the likelihood of dismissal in 
precisely those cases most vulnerable to manipulation, thereby eroding community trust and 
disproportionately harming victims from underrepresented communities. 
 
The four factors enumerated in the proposed amendment are vague, internally inconsistent, 
and ultimately unmoored from any constitutional baseline. Without a clear requirement that 
governmental misconduct must materially affect the accused’s right to a fair trial, the factors 
invite arbitrary or ideologically driven decisions—effectively substituting judicial belief for legal 
standard. Additionally, the Washington State Civil Legal Needs Study and the judicial branch’s 
own access-to-justice priorities emphasize the importance of procedural consistency, 
transparency, and safeguarding marginalized populations. See Washington State Civil Legal 
Needs Study Update Washington State Supreme Court .  A rule that allows for case dismissal 
without a constitutional standard or articulated prejudice risks undermining those priorities 
and weakening the credibility of the courts. 
 
The proposal is further justified by referencing system-wide racial disparities, but offers no 
mechanism for case-specific relief rooted in actual prejudice. To conflate systemic inequity 
with individualized dismissal, without due process analysis or constitutional scrutiny, risks 
creating inconsistent outcomes and undermining public trust—especially when similarly 
situated defendants receive divergent treatment under vague judicial assessments of 
“confidence in the justice system.” 
 
Lastly, public confidence in the criminal legal system depends on accountability, especially in 
crimes involving power, control, and repeated violations of court orders. If community 
members perceive that domestic violence cases can be dismissed for amorphous or political 
reasons, rather than based on objective legal standards, the legitimacy of the courts will be 
diminished, and victims may be less likely to report abuse or cooperate in prosecution. 
 
For these reasons, I strongly urge the Court to reject the proposed amendment to CrR/CrRLJ 
8.3(b). The current rule strikes the proper balance between holding government actors 
accountable and ensuring that criminal dismissals are grounded in concrete, demonstrated 
prejudice to the accused’s right to a fair trial. To remove that standard would not only 
destabilize domestic violence prosecution but also risk incentivizing further abuse through 
legal manipulation. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide input on this critical issue. 
 
Sincerely, 
 


 
David Martin 
Chair, Domestic Violence Unit   
King County Prosecuting Attorney's Office   
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Good morning,
Please find attached my comment on the proposed changes to 8.3
 
Sincerely,


David Martin
 
 
 


David D. Martin
Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Chair, Domestic Violence Unit
Co-Chair, Regional DV Firearm Enforcement Unit
King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office
516 3rd Avenue | Seattle | WA | 98104
Email: david.martin@kingcounty.gov
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





https://ocla.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/CivilLegalNeedsStudy_October2015_V21_Final10_14_15.pdf


https://ocla.wa.gov/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/CivilLegalNeedsStudy_October2015_V21_Final10_14_15.pdf













		8.3 Letter from David Martin, KCPAO DV Unit 4.17.25

		David






You don't often get email from jennifer.phillips@kingcounty.gov. Learn why this is important


From: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK
To: Farino, Amber
Subject: FW: proposed changes to CrR 8.3
Date: Thursday, April 17, 2025 9:21:38 AM
Attachments: image001.png


 
 


From: Phillips, Jennifer <Jennifer.Phillips@kingcounty.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 8:12 AM
To: OFFICE RECEPTIONIST, CLERK <SUPREME@COURTS.WA.GOV>
Subject: proposed changes to CrR 8.3
 


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


 


Because the proposed amendment does not require the action or misconduct to prejudice the
accused in any manner, it untethers the rule from due process. As a result, defendants would
benefit—and victims and public safety would suffer—even when the State’s action has in no way
interfered with a defendants’ right to a fair trial. This significant broadening of the rule, and trial
court’s discretion, would lead to unequitable application of the law
 


Jennifer L. Phillips
Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Violent Crimes - MRJC
King County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office
516 3rd Avenue | Seattle | WA | 98104
Office: (206) 477-1934
Email: jennifer.phillips@kingcounty.gov
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The proposed amendment is contrary to this Court’s precedent requiring a showing of
prejudice to warrant dismissal even when the text of the court rule does not mention it.  As
initially enacted in 1973, CrR 8.3 read: “The court on its own motion in the furtherance of justice,
after notice and hearing, may dismiss any criminal prosecution and shall set forth its reasons in a
written order.” Despite the seemingly broad discretion allowed under the original rule, this Court
held that dismissal under CrR 8.3(b) is only warranted if the defendant shows both arbitrary action or
governmental misconduct and prejudice affecting the defendant’s right to a fair trial. State v.
Michielli, 132 Wn.2d 229, 239-40, 937 P.3d 587 (1997).  In 1995, CrR 8.3(b) was amended to
explicitly include the prejudice requirement already imposed by case law. As this Court recounted in
State v. Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 654-55, 71 P.3d 638 (2003), courts had long recognized that
“dismissal of charges is an extraordinary remedy ... available only when there has been prejudice to
the rights of the accused which materially affected the rights of the accused to a fair trial.”  State v.
Baker, 78 Wash.2d 327, 332–33, 474 P.2d 254 (1970) (emphasis added in Rohrich). This conclusion
was based on principles of both due process and separation of powers. State v. Cantrell, 111 Wn.2d
385, 758 P.2d 1 (1988). In light of both the prior case law and the 1995 amendment codifying that
case law, this Court reaffirmed in Rohrich that a trial court may not dismiss charges under CrR
8.3(b) unless the defendant shows prejudice affecting their right to a fair trial. 149 Wn.2d at 653-54. 
Because the prejudice requirement is based on constitutional principles, amending the rule to omit it
is contrary to law and will only result in confusion. To the extent that the proponents seek to overrule
constitutional holdings of this Court via an amendment to the criminal rules, it is an improper
attempt to avoid stare decisis through the rule-making process.
 
 


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
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Greetings,
 
I am a Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney at the King County Prosecutor’s
Office, where I have served for almost 25 years.  I am currently the vice chair
of the Sexually Violent Predator Unit in my office.
 
The amendments to CrR 8.3(b)/CrRLJ 8.3(b) as currently proposed raise
significant concerns from both a public safety and equal application standpoint,
in addition to upending decades of Washington Supreme Court precedent. 
Even prior to inclusion of the language added to the rule in 1995 that explicitly
required a showing of prejudice, the Washington Supreme Court held that
prejudice affecting the defendant’s right to a fair trial needed to be shown. 
State v. Michielli, 132 Wn.2d 229, 239-40, 937 P.3d 587 (1997).  This
longstanding requirement makes sense, as our courts in Washington have
repeatedly held that dismissal of charges is an extraordinary remedy.  See State
v. Rohrich, 149 Wn.2d 647, 653 & 658, 71 P.3d 638 (2003).  There is no
reasonable basis to change course from how CrR 8.3(b)/CrRLJ 8.3(b) requests
are considered by the court.  Indeed, a prior effort in 2024 to amend these same
court rule provisions was not adopted.  The renewed effort is not grounded on
additional reasons that would warrant the changes again being sought, and the
newly proposed additional language does not remedy the concerns that existed
during the 2024 rule change effort.
 
Additionally, by not including a uniform requirement that the requisite
prejudice be established there is a notable risk that defendants across the state
could be treated differently depending on which judge they appear in front of,
resulting in significantly disparate outcomes.  Some judges may choose to
require a defendant to demonstrate prejudice as part of the “any other
information the court believes is relevant” or “the degree and impact of the
arbitrary action or governmental misconduct” while other judges may not
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because the requirement will be removed from the rule.  In fact, some judges
may choose to even disregard the lack of prejudice to a defendant’s right to a
fair trial specifically because it will have been removed from the rule if
adopted.
 
Inclusion of the language that says “any other information the court believes is
relevant,” without also maintaining a requirement that a defendant demonstrate
prejudice that materially affects their right to a fair trial, would allow a judge to
dismiss a case based only on that judge’s subjective determination of what is
arbitrary action.  That determination of arbitrariness could be grounded on a
judge’s belief about the charging decision or sentencing recommendation.  Any
given judge could reach a conclusion about arbitrariness or purported
governmental mismanagement based on a prosecutor’s charging standards or
allocation of office resources and therefore dismiss the case if they believed the
defendant was negatively impacted by those policies, even if no prejudice to
the defendant’s right to a fair trial exists.  This reality creates a serious risk of
violating the separation of powers between the judiciary and the prosecution.   
 
Finally, adverse public safety consequences and victims’ rights are implicated
by the proposed amendment, despite a defendant’s right to a fair trial not
necessarily being violated.  While the language of the amendment does include
“the impact of a dismissal on the safety or welfare of the community,” there is
no guidance on how this factor should be weighed against others and it does not
explicitly require the court to consider victim input in any event.  The right to a
fair trial is undeniably a bedrock principle of our justice system.  However,
fairness to victims and to the community should not be subject to sacrifice
when the defendant has not suffered material prejudice to their ability to have a
fair trial.
 
I would respectfully request that this proposed rule amendment again be
denied, as it was in 2024.  Thank you for your consideration of my input.
 
Best Regards,
 
Michael Mohandeson
 






